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Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To The Members of SUDHA BIO POWER PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Sudha Bio Power Private Limited ("the
Company"), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended,
and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “Ind AS financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

" Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Ind AS Financial Statements " section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provision of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for opinion.

Information other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the Ind
AS financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information, and accordingly, we do not .
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accountli}ng__;poji;ias;
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making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for oversesing the company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high-level assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

s Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from errot, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing

our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. . As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a)

(b)

(¢)

(d)

(e)

()

(2)

(h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

[n our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so faras it.appears
from our_examination of those books;

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of
cash flows and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books
of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2025 taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B?

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with the requirements
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the company
has paid remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid
down under section 197 read with the schedule V of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company has disclosed the possible impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial Statements;

(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

(iii) The company does not have any dues on account of Investor Education and Protection Fund.

(iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the Notes to accounts, during the year no funds (which are material either individually
or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been recejved_;b}{-.ghg Company from any




person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(g), as provided under (2) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement,

(v)  The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

(vi) Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software
for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the respective software. Further, during our audit, we did not come
across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved
by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For N G C & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Al Firm Registration No.: 033401N/ N500351

Parduman Biji
Partner
Membership No.: 095023
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF SUDHA BIO POWER PRIVATE LIMITED

The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of the Company on the Ind AS financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2025, we report that: :

®

iii.

(a) A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a program of physical verification of Praperty, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use
assets so to cover all the assets once every three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to
the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain property, Plant and
Equipment were due for verification during the year and were physically verified by the Management during
the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis our examination of the records
of the Company, the title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in the financial
statements, are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-use assets) or
intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated on or are
pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988)
and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the question of our commenting on whether the Company has
appropriately disclosed the details in its financial statements does not arise.

(a) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the Management
and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedures of such verification by Management is appropriate. The
discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not 10% or
more in aggregate for each class of inventory.

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR 5 crores, in aggregate, from
banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Company has filed monthly/ quarterly returns or
statements with such banks, which are in agreement with the books of account, except for few differences on
account of Provisions.

(a) The Company has, during the year, granted unsecured loans but has not provided security, made
investments or given guarantees to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.

The aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with respect to such
loans, guarantees and securities to subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates and to parties other than
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are as per the table given below: -

(Amt in Lacs)
Particulars Guarantees | Loans Investments

Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the
year
Subsidiaries - E =
Joint Ventures - -
Associates -




iv.

vi.

vil.

Others - 1,150.00 -
Balance outstanding (gross) as at balance sheet
date in respect of the above cases

Subsidiaries - - -

Joint Ventures - - -

Associates - - -
Others - 1,554.60 -

(b) In respect of the aforesaid loans, the terms and conditions under which such loans were granted are not
prejudicial to the Company’s interest, based on the information and explanations provided by the Company.

(¢) The borrowers have been regular in the repayment of the principal and payment of interest on loans where
so stipulated unless the arrangement does not contain any such schedule for repayment of principal/interest,

(d) There are no overdue amounts in respect of the loans granted to companies.

(¢) According to the information & explanation provided by the Company, there are no overdue amounts in
respect of the loans granted to companies. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(f) No loans or advances were granted that are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period
of repayment,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans, investments, guarantees and
security made, as applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits from
the public within the meaning of the directions issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and the provisions of
Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder.

The Company is required to maintain the books of account pursuant to the rules prescribed by the Central
Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act and we are of the opinion that
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not
made a detailed examination of the records with a view to ensure whether they are adequate or complete,

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Goods and Services tax, Duty
of Custom, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and Other Statutory Dues applicable to it. However,
there were few delays in depositing the taxes due, which were later deposited along with penal/ compensatory
interest.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Goods and Service tax, Duty of custom,
Duty of excise, Value added tax, Cess and Other Statutory Dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax,
Value Added Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Goods and Service Tax and Cess which
have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute except the followings :-

Amount
Nature of Dues Period :::gl)ved (R Forum where dispute is pending
Water Tax (including | 2006-2024 | 876.08 Water Resources Conservation Department,
penalty) Bilaspur Chhatisgarh.




viii.

xi.

xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed
as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans to banks and NBFC’s during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we
report that the Company has not been declared Willful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(¢) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not applied
any term loans during the year.

(d) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the funds
raised on short term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes.

(¢) The Company has do not hold any in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies, therefore,
this clause is not applicable.

(f) The Company has do not hold any in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies, therefore, this
clause is not applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise any money by way
of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the
year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company,
noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in
Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required
to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, no whistle blower complainis have been received by the
Company during the year.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the reporting
under Clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has entered
transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The
details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required under
Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures™ specified under Section 133 of the Act.

According to the provisions of section 138 of Companies Act, 2013, Company is not required to appoint an
internal auditor. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (xiv) (a) & (b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.




xvii.

xviii.

Xix.

XX,

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 192 of the Act. Accordingly,
the reporting under Clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be registered
under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Accordingly, the reporting under Clause
3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the year.
Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the Group has
Two CICs as part of the Group. We have not, however, separately evaluated whether the information
provided by the management is accurate and complete.

The Company has neither incurred any cash losses in the financial year nor in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the reporting under
Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios (also refer
Notes to the financial statements), ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board
of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year (for details refer note no. 33 to the financial
statements),

For N G C & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 033401N/ N500351

Parduman Biji

Partner

Membership No.: 095023
UDIN: @ &g 5023 BMKz @ X

Place: New Delhi
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Date: 27 May 2025



ANNEXURE (B) TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SUDHA BIO POWER PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sudha Bio Power Private Limited (“the
Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that:-




(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For N G C & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Al Firm Registration No.: 033401N/ N500351
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SUDHA BIO POWER PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025
(All amounts ave in rupees in lakhis), unless otherwise Stated)

Note
ASSETS
(i) Nom-current assets
(a)  Property, plant and equipment Ja
(b)  Capital Work in progress ]
(e)  Intangible assets (Goodwill) 3b
(d}  Financial assets
{1}  Other financial assets 4
Total non-current assets
(2)  Current assets
(a) Inventories =}
(b)  Financial assets
(i)  Trade receivables 6
(ii)  Cashand cash equivalents i
(i) Loans B
{iv} Other finuncial assets 9
{¢)  Other current assets 10
Total current assets
TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
(3)  Equity share capital 11
(b)  Other equity 12
Total equity *
(2) Nun-current liabilities
(a)  Financial liabilities
(i)  Bomowings 13
{b)  Provisions L4
(¢)  Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 15
Total non current liabilities
(3) Current liabilities
()  Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15
(ii)  Trade payable
Totul Outstanding dues of micro & small enterprise 17
Total Qutstanding dues of creditors other than Micro & Small 17
enleiprise.
(i)} Other financial liabilities 18
(b)  Other current liabilities 19
(e} Provisions 20
Total current liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Background & Significant Accounting Policies 1&2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements,

As per our report of even date attached
For NGC & Assuciales LLP
Churtered Accouniints

im Registration No.: 03340 1N/NSO03S1

Parduman Biji
Pariner
Membership No.: 095023

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27-05-2025

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

1,155.89 1,20823
476.95 476.95
64.1% 62.55
1,697.02 1,747.73
417.47 670.77
1,530.46 1,650.52
46.36 25.13
1,544.60 2,197.18
200.00 .
109.18 : 143.68
3,848.07 4,687.28
5,545.09 6,435.01
901.00 901.00
3,651.57 3,535.42
4,552.57 4,436.42
94.22 117.13
90,35 84.94
154.50 158 59
339.10 36096
473.17 623.66
3.94 4755
29.36 781.74
24.72 2356
5575 6691
66.48 94.21
653.42 1,637.63
5.545.09 6,435.01

h Sindhu

Managing Director
DIN: 02291158

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sudha Bio Power Private Limited

haran

Director
DIN: 00824167



SUDHA BIO POWER PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of profit and loss account for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Al gmounts are in rupees in lakh({s), unless otherwise stafed,
/4

Note
Income
1 Revenue from operation 21
I Other incoms 22
I Total income (1+11)
IV Expenses
Cost of material consumed 23
Employee benefit expenses 24
Finance cost 25
Depreciation 3
Other expenses . 26
Total Expenses
Y Profit/(loss) before tax (III-IV)
V1 Tax expense:
-Current tax
-Deferred tax charge/(credit) 15
VII Profit/ (Loss) for the year (V-VI)
VI Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
- Net actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans
Tncome tax relating to above items that will not be reclassified to profit or 15
loss
IX Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (VII+VIII)
Earning per equity share (Face value of Rs. 10 each) 27
(1) Basic
(2) Diluted
Background & Significant Accounting Policies 1&2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For NGC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accontunts

Firm Registration No.: 03340 IN/N500351

Parduman Biji
Fartner
Membership No.: 095023

Flace: New Delhi
Date: 27-05-2025

For the year ended
31 Mar 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

5,841.46 6,022.12
391.87 562.15
6,233.33 6,584.27
4,047.92 5,185.16
447.03 446.17
49.72 72.97
104.40 128.20
493 86 450.16
6,042.93 6,282.66
190.40 301.61
53.40 83.05
(3.87) (24.34)
49.53 58.71
140.87 242.90
(2.08) (7.93)
(2.08) (7.93)
0.52 2.00
(1.56) (5.93)
139.31 236.97
1.56 2.70
1.56 2.70

N

-~
Sindhu

Managing Director
DIN: 02291158

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sudha Bio Power Private Limited

al Saharan

Directar

DIN: 00824167



SUDHA BIO POWER PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in rupees in lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

a. Equity share capital

Balance as at 01 April 2023 901.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year 2023-24 -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 901.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year 2024-25 -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 901.00

b. Other equity

Other Equity (Refer Note 12)

i Items of other
Particulars . . i Total
Retained earnings comprehensive
income/(loss)
Balance as at the 01 April 2023 3,299.22 (2.68) 3,296.54
Profit/(loss) for the year 242.90 - 242.90
Earlier year taxes 1.91 - 1.91
Other comprehensive income/(loss) (net of tax) - (5.93) (5.93)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 244.81 (5.93) 238.88
Balance as at 31 March 2024 3,544.03 (8.61) 3,535.42
Balance as at 01 April 2024 3,544.03 (8.61) 3,535.42
Profit/(loss) for the year 140.87 - 140.87
Earlier year taxes (23.16) - (23.16)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) (net of tax) - (1.56) (1.56)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 117.71 (1.56) 116.15
Balance as at 31 March 2025 3,661.74 (10.17) 3,651.57

As per our report of even date attached
For NGC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 033401N/N500351

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Sudha Bio Power Private Limited

“

al Saharan

[ SO~
s ‘\“? N\
;2{‘?,"/— ’(\\ﬁ \\ /
= g {:- { May, Rk
Parduman Biji [\3 \ YDepey | 2| STurabh Sindhu
Partner \-\‘3%', e &b’,ﬁ,’ Managing Director
Membership No.: 095023 N DIN: 02291158

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27-05-2025

DIN: 00824167




SUDHA BIO POWER PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts are in rupees in lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

A) Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit/(loss) betore tax
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Gratuity Paid
Provision for gratuity
Finance cost
Interest income
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes
Adjustment for :
Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial liabilities
Increase/ (Decrease) in other liabilities
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables
Decrease/ (Increase) in other assets
Decrease/ (Increase) in inventories
Decrease/ (Increase) in trade receivables
Decrease/ (Increase) in other current financial assets
Cash Generated from operations
Taxes paid (net)
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities (A)

B) Cash from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment / capital work-in-progress
Interest income
Net cash used in investing activities (B)

C) Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of long-term
Finance cost paid
Net cash flow from financing activities (C )

D} Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B-+C)
E) Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year
F) Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year

Component of cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks:
-current account
Cash in hand
Total

Note:

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 Mareh 2024
190.40 301.61
104.40 128.20
(10.18) -

15.47 13.21
49.72 72.97
(182.79) (346.14)
167.02 169.85
1.16 6.81
(1117 25.11
(795.99) (184.12)
(197.02) (24.52)
253.30 (276.62)
120.06 (169.30)
652.57 300.78
189.93 (152.01)
(76.31) 5
113.62 (152.01}
(52.06) (11.95)
182.79 346.14
130.73 334,19
(173.40) (96.75)
(49.72) (72.97)
(223.12) (16Y9.72)
21.23 12.46
25.13 12.67
46.36 25.13
2502 15.59
21.34 0.54
46.36 25.13

The cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with 'Indirect method' as set out in the Ind AS 7 on 'Cash Flow Statements', as specified in the

Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014,

As per our report of even date aitached
For NGC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 033401N/N500351

{
' NBu Psics
Parduman Biji l! o e -_.\,.',,,J{ %::

Pariner .&-} \ o ,{o/.“
Membership No.: 095023 N\ A

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27-05-2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sudha Bie Power Private Limited

r /
aurabh Sindhu Yaslp}l §aharan

Managing Direclor Director
DIN; 02291158 DIN: 00824167



SUDHA BIO POWER PRIVATE LIMITED )
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 Mar 2025
(AN amaunts are in rupees in lakh(s), mless otherwise stated)

1 Company informution
Sudlia Bio Power Private Limited (the 'Company’) is a Domestic Private Limited Company incorporated in India. The registered office of
the Company is located at F.No. 43, STS, Flat, Old Palam Marg, Vasant Enclave, New Delhi 110057, The Comipany is engaged in
activities to generate, hamess, develop, accumulate, distribute and supply clectricity by setting up bio mass power plants by use of liquid,
gaseous or solid fuels for the purpose of light, heat mative power and for all other purposes for which electric energy can be employed.

2 Significant accounting policies

a) Basis for preparation of financial statements
Compliance with lnd AS
The separate financial have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the Accounting Standards notified under
Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act) as per Compenies (Indian Accounting § fards (Ind AS)) Rules, 2015 and other relevant
provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder.

Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convenlion and sccrual hasis, except for cerfain financial assets and
lisbilitics mensured at fair value and plan assets towards defined benefit plans, which are measured at fair value.

b) Property, plant and equipment (including capital work-in-progress)

Frechold Jand is caried at historical cost, All ather items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the itens.

Subscquent cost are included in the asset’s carying amount or recognized a5 a separale assel, as appropriate, only when itis probable that
future cconomic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, The camying
amount of any component accounted for as a scparate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and mainienance expenses are
charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred,

Assets acquired but not ready for use are classified under Capital work in progress and are stated at cost comprising direct cost and related
incidental expenses. @

¢} Depreciation/ amorlisation
Assets in the course of development or construction and Fechold land are not depreciated.
Other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any pravision for hupainnent. Depreciation
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. g

Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset less its residual value. Depreciation is provided at rates
calculated to write off the cost, less estimated residual value, of each asset on a wrilten down value basis over its expected useful life

{determined by the management based on technical estimates), as follows:

The ¢stimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Buildings 30-60 years
Plant & Equipment 15-40 years
Fumiture & Fixtures 5-10 years
Vehicles B-10 years
Office Equipments Syears

Individual items of assets costing upto Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition,

Major inspection and overhaul costs are depreciated over the estimated life of the ic benefit derived from such costs. The cartying
amount of the remaining previous overhaul cost is charged to the statement of profit and loss if the next overhaul is undertaken earlier than
the previously estimated life of the economic benefit.

When significant spare parts of an item of propeity, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as scparate
items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and changes in estimates, if any, are
accounted for prospectively.

d) Impairment of assets

Assessiment is done at each balance sheet date 1o evaluate whether there is any indication that a non-financial asset may be impaired. For
the purpose of pssessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of asscts that generates cash inflows from continuing use that arc
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets, is considered as a cash generating unit. 1f any such
indicalion exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset/ cash generating unit is made. Assets whose carrying value exceeds
fheir recaverable amaunt are written down to their recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit's
net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing
use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. A previously recognised impaiment loss is increased or reversed
depending on changes in cire es, However, the carrying value afier reversal is not increased beyand the carrying value that would
have prevailed by charging usual depreciation if there was no impairment




SUDHA BIO POWER PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 Mar 2025
(Al amannis are in rupees in lakhfs), unless atherwise staied)

) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise fo a financial asset in one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument in
another entity.

Financial nssets

Initial recognition

In the case of financial assets, not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), financial assets are recogniscd initially at fair
value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the fis ial asset. Purch or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) arc
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

(a) Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to
hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the conbactual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates, to
eash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal L ling. T i fiom these financial
assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate (EIR)) method, Impaimment gains or losses arising on these assets are
recognised in the statemment of profitand loss.

(b) Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets are 1 at fair value fhrough other comprehiensive income (FVOCI) if these financial assets are held within a
business model with an objective to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the
cantractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and inferest on the
principal amount oulstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through QCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in the statement of profit and less.

Financial assets that do not meet the ¢riteria for amortised cost or FVOCT are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Tnd AS 109, the Company applies the expected credit loss (ECLY) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on financial assets and credit risk exposures.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. Simplified approach does
not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.

For recognition of impairment loss on ether financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has heen a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. 1f credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide
for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increascd significantly, liferime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent pericd, credit quality of
the nstrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recognising impainment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash fiows
that the entity expects to receive (i.c. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses
resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is & portion of the lifetime
ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recarded as expense/ income in the staioment of profit and
loss.

De-recognition of financial assets
The Company dé-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the assct expire, or it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

If the Company neither transfers nior retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and confinues to control the transferred
asset, the Company resognizes its retained interest in the assets and an assoeiated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

If the Company retains sul ially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a tansfemed finansial asset, the Company continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borowing for the proceeds received,




SUDHA BIO POWER PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 Mar 2025
(Al amonts are i rupees inlakhfs), waless otherwise s taied)

Equity investments

All equity investments in the scope of Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, are measured at fair value. For equity instruments, the Company
may make an inevocable election to present the subsequent fair value changes in Other Comprelensive Income (OCI). The Company
makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable,

There is no recyeling of the amounts from OCI to profit or loss, even on sale of investment.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL (fair value through profit and loss) category are measured at fair value with all changes in
fair value recognized in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition

Finarcial liabilities are  at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVTPL, loans and barrowings and payables as appropriate,
All financial Kabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

Tace Rad

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at FYTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL inelude financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as
FVTPL. Financial libilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse (he holder fora
Jass it incurs because the specified deblor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the ferms of a debt instrument, Financial
guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liabitity at fuir value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly atiributable to the
issuance of the puaraniee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per
impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the recognised less lative amortisation, Amortisation is recognised as finance
income in the statement of profit and loss,

Financial liabilities at amortised cost )

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement ar redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of
the borrowings in the statement of profit and loss.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount of premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statzment of profit and loss.

De-recognition of financial liabilitics

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the abligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assels and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

f) Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial assets and financial liability at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
! pants at the me date, The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the linbility takes place either;

The principal or the most advantageous macket must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that marker participants would use when pricing the assel or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a marker participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in ils highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The

Company uses valuation iques that are appropriale in the ci cs and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.




SUDHA BIO POWER PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 Mar 2025
(All amennis are tn rupees i lakhs), wnless otherwise staivd)

All gssets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hicrarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level | - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is direetly or indirectly
observable.

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the fowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable. For
assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial st ts on a recuning basis, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company’s valuation team determines the policics and procedures for both recuring fair value measurement, such as derivative
instruments and ungquoted financial assets red at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement.

Inventories

" Consumables, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value; cost is computed on first-in-fiest out basis. The cost of
inventeries comprises all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Obsolete, defective, unserviceable and slow/monmoving stocks are duly provided for. Net realisable value is esti | selling price in
ordinary course of business less the estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

h) Cash and cash equivalents
In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents ineludes cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short-term highly liquid
uue>1menls with original maturitics of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts, Bank overdrafts arc shown within borrowings in current liahilities in the
balance sheet.

i) Cash flow
Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whercby profit for the yvear is adjusted Tor the effects of transactions of a non cash nature,
any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash ipts or pay and jtem of income or expenses associated with investing or
financing cash flow. The cash flows from operating, investing & fnancing activities of the pany or segregated. The company id

all highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to know amounts of cash to be cash equivalents,

j) Recognition of Income
The Company eams revenue primarily fom sale of electricity.
Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how

much and when revenue is to be recognised. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts. The
Company has adopied Ind AS 115 using the cumulative effect method. The effect of initially applying this standard is recognised at the date
of initial application (ie. April 1, 2018). The standard is applied retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed as at the date of
initial application and the comparative information in the statement of profit and loss is not restated — ie. the comparative information
continucs to be reported under Ind AS 18 and Ind AS 11, Refer Note 2(m) — Significant accounting policies — Revenue recognition in the
Annual report of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018, for the revenue recognition policy as per Ind AS 18 and Ind AS 11. The
impact of the adoption of the lard on the fi ial nts of the Company is insignificant.

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable thal the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of
the government and reduced by any rebates and trade discount allowed.




SUDHA BIO POWER PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial stutements for the year ended 31 Mar 2025
(AN amounts are in rupees in lakhis), unless otherwise s fanieed)

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met befare income is recognised.

i, Incoine is recognised on zccrual basis and provision is made for all known losses and liabilities.

ii. Revenue from sale of poods is recognised net of rebates and discounts on transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership to the
Buyer, Sale of goods is recognised net of sales tax, value added tax and GST.

iiil. Revenue fiom services rendered is recognised on prorata basis in proportion 1o the stage of completion of the related transaction.

iv. Tnterest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial assst to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset. When caleulating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by idering all the c 1 lermns
of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses. ol

v. Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

vi. Rental income is tecognised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease

k) Employee benefits
Defined contribution plan
The Company’s contribution to Provident Fund and Employees State Insurance Scheme is determined based on a fixed percentage of the
cligible employees” salary and charged to the statement of profit and loss on acerual basis, The Company has categorised its Provident
Fund, Labour Welfare Fund and the Employees State Insurance Scheme as a defined contribution plan since it bas no further obligations
beyend these contributions,

Defined benefit plan

The Company’s liability towards gratuity, being a defined benefit plan are accounted for on the basis of an independent actuarial valuation
based on Projected Unit Credit Method. Gratuity Kability is funded by payments fo the trust established for the purpose.

Service cost and the net interest cost is included in employee benefit expense in the Statement of profit and loss. Actuarial gains and losses
comprise experience adjustments and the effects of changes in actuarial assumplions and are recognised immediately in ‘other
comprehensive income' as income or expense.

1} Borrowing costs
General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition/ censtruction of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take o substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, are added to the cost of those asscts, until such time the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use, All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in statenient of profit and loss
in the periad in which they are incurred.

m) Borrowings and other financial liabilities
Bomrowings and other financial linbilities are initially recognised at fair value (net of transaction costs incurred). Difference between the fair
value and the transaction proceeds on initial recognition s recognised as an asset / Hability based on the underlying reason for the
difference.

Subsequently all financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method,
Borrowings are eliminated from the bal sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancefled or expired. The

difference between the carrying amount of & financial liability that has been extinguished or mansferred to another party and the
leration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilifies assumed, is recognised in profit or loss. The gain [ loss is
recognised in other equily in casc of ions with shareholders.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilitics unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting periad.

n) Trade receivables .
A reccivable is classified as a ‘trade receivable' if it s in respect of the amount due on account of services remdered in the normal course of
business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method, less
provision for impainment,

0) Trade payables
A payable is classified as a 'wade payable' i it is in Tespect of the amount due on t of goods purchased or services received in the
normal course of business. These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the
financial year which are unpaid. These amounts are unsccured and are usually settled as per the payment lenms stated in the contract, Trade
and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR methad.




SUDHA B1O POWER PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 Mar 2025
(All amownts are in rupees in lakhfs), wnless otherwise stated) -

p) Taxation
i. Tax cxpense recognised in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax not recognised in other comprehensive income

or directly in equity.

ii. Current income tax liabilitics and/or assets comprise those obligations to, or elaims from, fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior
reporting periods, that are unpaid at the reporting date. Curent tax is payable on taxable profit, which differs fiom profit or loss in the
financial statements. Calculation of current tax is based on lax rates and tax laws that have been d or substantively ted by the
end of the reporting period. Deferred income taxes are caleulated using the liability method on temporary differences between the camying
amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases.

iil. Deferred tax assets are recognised 1o the extent it is probable that the underlying tax loss or deductible tempovary difference will be
utilised against future taxable income. This is assessed based on the Company’s forecast of future operations results, adjusted for
significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused tax loss or credit,

iv. Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of tax income or expense in profit or loss, except where they
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the related deferved tax is also
recognised in other comprehiensive income or equity, respectively.

v, Tax credit is recognised in respect of Minimum Altemate Tax (MAT) as per the provisions ef Section 115TAA of the Tncame Tax Act,
1961 based on convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax within the statutory time frame and is reviewed at cach
balance sheet date.

g} Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and 2 reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the abligation.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise fiom past events, whose existence would be confinmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain fulure events not wholly within the control of the Conipany. Such liabilities are
disclosed by way of notes to the financial statements.

r) Segment Reporting
In the opinion of management, there is only one teportable sey ie, g tion & distribution of electricity as envisaged by Ind AS 108
“Segment Reporting”, Accordingly. no disclosure for segment reparting has been made in the financial statements. .

5) Borrowing Costs
General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or truction of qualifying assets (Le. those property plant &
equipments which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use) are capitalised. Other borrowing costs
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

t) Significant management judgements in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty
When preparing the financial st | tent makes a number of judgments, estimates and ptions about the recognition and
measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require & material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Impairment of non-financial assets

In assessing impainment, t esti the recoverable amount of each asset or caslh-generating unit based on expected future
cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount them. Estimation uncertainty relates to assumptions about future operating results and the
determination of a suitable di L rate.

Depreciation and useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equip are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking into account their estimated
residunl value. Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount
of depreciation to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are based on the Company’s historical
experience with similar assets and take into account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation for future periods is adjusted if
there are significant changes from previous estimates.

Recoverability of trade receivable
Judgments are required in ing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining whether a provision against those

receivables is requited. Factors idered include the credit rating of the counterparty, the amount and timing of anticipated future

payments and any possible actions that can be taken to mitigale the risk of non-payment.

Provisions

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of funds resulting from
past operalions or events and the amount of cash cutflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the
liability require the application of judgment to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change. Since the cash outflows
can take place many years in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and adjusted to take
account of changing facts and cir L




SUDHA BIO POWER PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 Mar 2025
(Al amonnis are in rupees in lakh(s), unless atherwise staied)

Defined benefit obligation (DBO)
Manugement’s estimate of the DBO is based on & number of eritical underlying ass such as standard rates of inflation, mortality,
discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and
the annual defined benefit expenses

u) Defined contribution plan

Delined benefit plan:

Gratuity plan:

The Campany operaies a gratuity plan which provides lump sum benefits linked to the qualifying salary and completed years of service
with the Company at the time of separation. Every employee who has completed 5 years of cantinuaus service is entitled to receive graluily
at the time of his retirement or separation from the organization whichever is earfier. However the condition of completion of 5 years of
service is not applicable where separation is on account of disability or death of an employee. The gratuity benefit that is payable to any
employee, is computed in accordance with the provisions of "The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

The Gratuity fund
The following talle sets forth the status of the gratuity plan of the Company and the amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet and statement

of profit and Toss!
|Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2025 31 Mareh 2024

Changes in the present value of]

{defined benefit abligation

Present value as at the beginning of the 96.10) 74,96
year

Included in profit and loss account

-Current service cost 850 7.65
-Interest cost 6.96] 556
-Benefits paid (10.18 E
Included in pther comprehensivel

income

-Actuarial loss/ (gain) arising fron 2.08] 7.93
change in

Present value of the obligation at the| 103.46 96.10°
end of the year

Particulars As at 31 March | Asat31 March

2025 2024

Present value of unfunded obligations 103.46 96.10
Net liability 103.46 96.10)
Amcunts in Balance Sheet

Liability 103.46 96.10
Met linbility is bifurcated as follows;

Long term 90.38 84.94
Short term 13.08 11.16
[Net liability 103.46) 56.10]

Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date are as follows

Economic assumptions:

The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary escalation rate. The discount rate is generally based upon the market yields
available on Goverment bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of the liabilities and the salary growth rate takes
account of inflation, seniority, promolion and other relevant factors on long term basis. The assumptions used are summarized in the

following table:
Particulars Asat As at

31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024 |
Discount rate p.a. 6.73%4 7.25%
Salary escalation rale p.a. 5.00% 5.00%




SUDHA BIO POWER PRIVATE LIMITED
Nates to financial statements for the year ended 31 Mar 2025
(Al amaounis are inrupees in lakhis), unless otfierwise staled)

Demagraphic assumplions:
Particulars Asat As at
‘ 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Retirement age 60 years 60 years
Mortality Ult table LALM (2012-14)  [IALM (2012-14)

=

ii)

iii)

Sensitivity analysis:

The key actuarial assumption to which the benefit obligation results are particularly sensitive to discount rate and fiture salary escalation
rate. The following table summarizes the impact on the reparted defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period arising on
account of an increase or decrease in the reported asswmption by 100 basis points.

Particulars Year ended 31 March 2025 Year ended 31 March 2024
Discount rate Salary escalation |Discount rate Salary escalation
rate rate
Tncrease (decrease) on plus 100 bps 9589 112.17 88.71 104.68
Increase (decrease) on minus 100 bps 112.11 95.71 104,57 88.@]

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation
of the sensitivity of the assumpltions shown.

These sensitivities have been caleulated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isolation and assuming there are no other
changes in market conditions at the reporting date.

Expected maturity analysis

The expected maturily analysis of defined benefit obligation is as follows:

Particulars Asnt31 March | Asat31 March
2028 2024

Less than | vear 13.08 11.16

1-2 years 385 2.54]

2-5 years 19,55 13.09]

Mare than 5 years 66.98] 69.32]

The weighted average duration to the payment of defined benefit obligation is 13 years (31 March 2024: 14 years).

Risk Analysis:
The above defined benefit plan expose the Company the following risks:

Interest rate risk
The defined benefit obligation ealculated uses a discount rale based on government bonds. 1fbond yields fall, the defined benefit obligation
will tznd to increase.

Salary inflation risk 3
Hiuher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.

Demographic risk

This is the risk of variability of results due to wnsystematic natwre of decrements that include mortality, withdrawal, disability and
retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obfigation is not straight forward and depends upon the combination of
salary increase, discount rate and vesting criteria. It is important not to overstate withdrawals because in the financial analysis the
retivement benefit of a short career employee typically costs less per year as compared to a long service employee.

Fair value measurement

Managerient uses valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active market quotes are not availahle)
and non-financial assets. This involves developing estimates and assumplions consistent with bow marker participants would price the
instrument. Management bases its assumptions on observable data as far as possible but this is not always available. In that case
management uses the best information available. Estimated fair values may vary fiom the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s
length transaction at the reporiing date.




SUDHA BIO POWER PRIVATE LIMITED
Nates to financial statements for the year ended 31 Mar 2025
(Al amonnis ave n rupevs in lakhis), unless otherwise staied)

v Earnings per share
The Company presents basic and diluted eamings per share data for its equity shares. Basic and diluted eamings per share is calculated by

dividing the profit or lass attributable to awners of the equity shares of the Holding Company by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year.

w Exceptional items
When items of income and expense within statement of profit and loss friom ordinary activities are of such size, nature or incidence that
their disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the enterprise for the period, the nature and amount of such material items are

disclosed seperately as exceplional items.

x) Events after reporting period
Adjusting events are events that provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period. The financial
statements are adjusted for such events before authorisation for issue.
Non-adjusting evenls are events that are indicative of conditions that arose after the end of the reporting period. Non-adjusting events after
the reporting date are not accounted, but disclosed.

¥) Rounding off amounts
All disclosed in the Tinancial stat ts and notes hiave been rounded off 1o the nearest Lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule

11, unless otherwise stated.
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SUDHA BIO POWER PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amannts are in rupees in lakh(s), unless otherwise siated)

C

@i

(i)

Capital wark-in-progress

Asat
31 March 2025

Particulars

Balance as at
01 April 2024

Addition during the
year

Capitalization during
the year

Balance as at
31 March 2025

Capital work in progress

Total

As at
31 March 2024

Partcilars Balance as at Addition during the | Capitalization during Balance as at

01 April 2023 year the year 31 March 2024
Capital work in progress 0.89 = 0.89 -
Total 0.89 - 0.89 -

Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule:
Ageing for capital work-in-progress is as follows:

Asat
31 March 2025

Amount of capital work-in-progress for a period of

Less than 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 yeurs

More than 3 years

Particulars Total
ey Less than 1 vear 1-2 vears 2-3 yeirs More than 3 years o
Prajects in progress i 3 - =
Asat
31 March 2024

P il Amount of eapital work-in-progress for a period of Total

Projects in progress

There are no projects which are temporarily suspended.

For capital work-in-progress, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compa red to its original plan, the project-wise details of when the project is

expected to be completed are as follows:

There are no projects in CWIP, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan,




SUDHA BIO POWER PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to linancial statements for the year ended 31 Mar 2025
(Al amounis are inrupees in lakhds), wnless otheraise staed)

Other financial assets (non-current ) As at Asat
(Tisecured, constdered good unless otherwise siared) 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Security Deposits 64.18 62.55

64.18 62.55

Inventories Asat As at

(varled ar the lower af cost or sal reallzoble value) 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Coal S0.10 24.54
Biomnss Husk 15657 43135
Stares & spares 210 &0 21488
417.47 670.77

Trade receivables Asat As at

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Unseeured & Considered Good
Trade Recetvables
Less! Pravision for doubtful debis

Ageing for Trade Receivables as at 31 March 2025:

1,53046

1,/50.52

1,530.46

1.650.52

Quistanding lor lorllowing per

iods from due dale of payment

Particulars

Less than 6
maonths

6 months-1

1-2 years
Year

More than 3
years

2-3 years

Total

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good

1,530.46

1,530.46

Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have
significant increase in eradi risk

Undisputed Trade Receivables — credil impaired

Dispuled Trade Reczivables-considered good

Disputed Trade Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit sk

Dispuled Trade Receivables - credit impaired

Ageing for Trade Receivables ns at 31 March 2024:

Quistanding for forllowing per

iods from due date of payment

Particulars

Less than &
months

& months-1

1-2 yes
e years

Move than 3

1-3 years years

Total

Undispuled Trade Receivables - considered good

1,650 52

1,650.52

Undispuled Trade Receiyables - which have
significant incregse in credit risk

Undisputed Trade Receivaobles — credit impaired

Disputed Trade Receiyvables-considened good

Dispuizd Trade Reczivables = wiich have
significant increase in credil risk

Disputed Trade Reczivables - credil impaired

Nale: The date of raising of invoices for sales and services [s being 1aken as due date of realisation of deblors,




SUDHA B10O POWER PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 Mar 2025
fall amounts arc in rupees in lakis). unless otherwise siaied)

T Cash, eash equivalents and other bank balances As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Cash mmd cash eguivalents
Balance with banks : .
~Current accounls 25.02 15.59
Cash in hand 21.34 .54
46,36 25.13
8 Loans Asat Asat
31 March 2015 31 March 2024
Inter Corporate Deposits 1,544 60 2,197.18
1.544.60 2,197.18
9 Other Financial assets (Curvent) ; As at As at
(imsocured, considered! good unless otherwise stared) 31 March 2025 31 Marcch 2024
Security Depusils 20000 -
200.00 s
10 Other curvent assets As at Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Advence lo suppliers 54,14 50.18%
Sl Advance 2036 2546
Prepaid expenses 6,85 16,12
Current 1ax receivable 27.79 5192
109.18 143.68
12 Other equity ] Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance 353542 3,206.54
Add: Profitiloss) for the year 14087 24290
Earlier yaar taves (23.16) 1.91
Other comprehensive income (1.56) (593
Closing balance wz.ﬂ 3,535.42
13 Barrowings (non-currenl}-amortized at cost Asat As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Secured Loan 5
From banks* TR62 14984
Legs: Current malurities of fong term borrowings (refer Note 16) 25.94 71.40
51.68 78.44
Unsecured Loan
Inter corporate deposil 4154 3869
41,54 38.69
Tolal Borrowings 5322 llTJ_g__“
Footuote:
Nature of security Terms of repayment of principal and interest
Second charge over all existing primary and collateral securities. Hypothecation of ) Company has taken ECLGS Loan from Indusind Bank of Rs. 2.15 crores during the FY 2020-21
entire current assels of the company, which is 1o be repaid in 36 equal installments. Inierest ralz for the loan shall be 2.25%.

b) Company has taken a car loan from Axis Bank of Rs.1.27 crores during the FY 2022-23 which
is to b repaid in 60 equal installments, Interest rate for the lean shall be 9.40%.




SUDHA BLO POWER PRIVATE LIMITED
Noles to financial statements for the year ended 31 Mur 2025
(AN amoneeits are in pupeds i lakhfs), wnloss evherwive siaied)

2o As at Asat
18 Wrevitins (i suoeil 31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024
Provision [or employes benelils
<Provision for gratuity 0038 #4.94
90.38 84.94
2 i
- . As at Asat
15 Deferved tax assets/ (linbility)-Net 31 Mar 2028 31 March 2024
(i}  The balances comprises temporary differences atiributable to the following:
Deferred tax assets arising on account of
Provision for Graluity 18.70 14.29
18.70 14.29
Deferred tax linbility arising on account of
-Property, plant and equipment 173.20 173.18
Valuation of equity shares hold as invesiment - -
173.20 173.18
Nei deferred tax asset/{ Liability) (154.50) (158.89)
HNet Balance Net Balance . Net Balance
= . 3 ' Recognised in | Recognised in Recognised in | Recognised in
(i)  |Movement in deferved tax balances As at profit or Joss ocl Asat profit or lass oc1 As at
1 April 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2025
Deferred tax asset
Pravision of graluily B.87 332 2.00 14.29 3 R0 0.52 18,70

Deferved tax liability
Properly, plant and equipment 194.20 {21.02) - 173.18 0.0z = 173.20
Valuation of equily shares held as Invesimen
(recognised in OCT)

Deferred tax assel /iliability) (net) {185.23) 24.34 2.00 (158.39) 3.57 0.52 (154.50)

16 Borrowings (curvent) Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Loans repayable on demand (secured):
Cash Credit Limit* 447.23 55226

Current maturities of long term borrowings 25.94 7140
473.17 623.60
= Lo

Foolnote:

*Nature of security

(1) Pari-passu first charge by way of hypothecation/ mortgage on all current assers including entire siocks and book debls, both present and fulure, comprsing, inieralia, of stock of raw material, work
in progress, finished good.

{2) Pari-passu collateral charge on all hlef immeovable fixed assets of company present and fulure.

Foetnote:
L Company has taken Cash Credil fram Indusind Bank of Rs. 600 crores during the FY 2015-16 against primary security of the enlire current assets of the campany, existing and future, comprising, inter-
alia, of stocks of mw material, work in progress, finished goods, recaivables, book debls and other current assets. The same has heen secured with with eollateral security of entire movable and

immosable fixed assets of the company.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 Mar 2025
(AN armonnts are in rugecs in fakhfi), waless oierwise siaicd)

17 Trade payables As at As al
31 March 2015 31 March 2024
Trade Payables for goods & services
Tolol outstanding dues of Micro & Small Enierprise 304 47.55
Tolal outstanding dues of other trade pavables 28306 781.74
33.30 §29.29
—— —

Aueing for Trade Payables as at 31st March 20252

e LU LR LR

O ling far forllowing periods from due date of p
Particula
rticulars Less than 1 12 years 2.3 years More than 3 Tolal
year years
MSME 2.68 1.26 = - 354
Others 28.48 - - 088 29.36
Disputed dues - MSME = P i = :
Dispuled dues - Others - F] u = i
Ageing for Trade Payahles out ding as at 31st March 2024:
Qutstanding for following perieds lrom due date of payvment
Particulars
icular Less than 1 12 yenrs 2.3 yeilcs More than 3 Total
year years
MSME 46.96 0,59 - - 47.58
Ohers T6HR 29 12,17 0,20 108 781.74

Dispuled dugs - MSME

Disputed duss - Others

Nove: The dale of booking ol invoice of suppliers and vendors for sales! services is being taken as due date of payment of creditors.

Dues To Micro And Small Enterprises

Ent

The Company has cariain dues 1o suppliers registersil wider Micio, Small and Medi

T

Deselog

1 Act, 2006 (' MSMED Act’). The disclosures pursuant 10 the said MSMED Act are as follows

Particulars

(a) The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier al the end of the year.
() Tnterest dus remaining unpaid to any supplieral the end ol the year.

(¢} The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Seclion 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006, alang with the

amiount of the paviment mode 1o the supplier bevond the appeinied day during the year.

(d) The amaunt of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making pavment (which have been paid but

beyand the appoinied day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006,
{e) The amount ol interest accrued and remaining unpaid al the end of each accounting year.

{f) The amount of further intzrest remaining due and payable even in the succeading years, unlil such date when
fhe interest dues abave ara aciually paid to the small enterprises, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible

expendilure under Section 23 of the MSMED Aet, 2006,

Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the “Micro, Small and Medium Enierprise Development Act, 20067 is based on the information available with the Comp

As at31 March As at 31 Murch
025 2024
394 47.55
ganding the s1atus of registralion of

such vendors under the said Act, as per the inlimation reczived from them on requests made by the Company. There are Tew cases of deficiency in quality of goods and services given by these vendors. In these
cases, the amounts payable are not due and hence no provision of inierest has been made therein. There are na everduz principal amounts / imerest payable amounts for delayed payments to such vendors at the
Balance Sheet date. There are no delays in payment made 10 such suppliers during the year or for any cardier years and accordingly there is no interest paid or uistanding inferest in this regard in respect of

peyment made during the year or on balance brought Forward from prey ious year.

18 Dther financial labilities (current)

As at
31 Mareh 2025

Asat
31 March 2023

Saleries & wages payable 24:72 23.56
24.72 23.56
—
12 Other current labilities As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2023
Sumutory dues pryable iz 39.46
Other expense payable 4.63 7.45
§=5.75 66.91
20 Frovisions (current) Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2023
Provision for lasation 3340 8305
Provision for gratuity 1308 1L16
66.48 94.21




SUDHA B10 POWER PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 Mar 2025
(All cmounts are in rupees in lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

11 Share capital
As at 31 March 2025 Asat 31 March 2024
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Authorised share capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 3,60,00,000 3,600,00 3.,60,00,000 3,600.00
3,60,00,000 3,600.00 3,60,00,000 3,600.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid 90,10,000 901.00 90,10,000 901.00
90,10,000 901.00 90,10,000 901.00
et
a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
Asat 31 March 2025 Asat31 March 2024
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Equity Shares
Shares at the beginning of the year 90,10,000 901.00 90,10,000 901.00
Add: Shares issued during the year - = = z
Total 90,10,000 901.00 90,10,000 901.00
b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares, having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. All shares rank pari passu with respect to dividend, voling rights and
ather terms. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed, if any, by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of shareholders in
the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. The repayment of equity share capital in the event of liquidation and buy back of shares
are possible subject to prevalent regulations, In the event of liquidation, normally the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the
Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.
¢) Shares held by Holding Company
As at 31 March 2025 Asat 31 March 2024
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up held by No. of Shares % of shares held No. of Shares % of shares held
Sindhu Trade Links Limited 90,10,000 100% 50,10,000 100%
90,10,000 100% 90,10,000 100%
d) Details of Equity shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up held by No. of Shares % of shares held No. of Shares % of shares held
Sindhu Trade Links Limited 90,10,000 100% 90,10,000 100%
90,10,000 100% 90,10,000 100%
¢) Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

As at 31 March 2025

Asat 31 March 2024

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up held by No. of Shares % of shares held No. of Shares % of shares held
Sindhu Trade Links Limited 90,10,000 100% 90,10,000 1002
90,10,000 100%: 90,10,000 100%
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21 Revenue from operations

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the ycar ended
31 March 2024

22

Supply of electricity 5,841.46 6,022.06
Paver Block & RCC Poles Sale - 0.06
5.841.46 6.022.12

For the year ended For the year ended

Other income

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Tnterest income from financials assets measured at amortised cost

Interest received
Electricity duty received
Miscellaneous income

182.79 346.14
208.10 21247

0.98 3.54
391.87 562.15

Cost of material consumed

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Biomass consumed 4.228.16 4,333.09
Coal consumed 277.28 406.40
Chemical consumption 23.17 2258
Transportation, loading & handling charges 109.89 111.36
Electricity duty 177.39 182.92
SDSMA charges 0.75 6.56
Electricity charges 55.38 44.76
Wages 75.90 77.49

4,947.92 5,185.16

24 Employee benefit expenses For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Salaries, wages and bonus
Workmen and staff welfare expenses
Provisian for gratuity

413.15 41522
18.41 17.74
15.47 13.21

447.03 446.17

Finance costs

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Interest expense from financial liabilitics measured at amortized cost

Interest on term loan
Interest on cash credit limit
Interest paid on ICD
Intercst other statutory dues
Other borrowing cost
Processing fees

1.66 803
36.00 50.35
3.46 350
8.60 10.84
= 0.25
49.72 72.97
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For the year ended For the year ended

35; (Acricipraic 31 March 2025 31 Mareh 2024

Repair & maintenance:

- Plant and machinery 250.71 206.17
- Others 13.23 5.54
Electricity duty 51.64 54.12
Security charges 42.94 41.14
Statutory auditor's remuneration 4.11 391
Cost Audit Fees 0.50 -
Bank charges : 0.44 0.01
Corporate social responsibility 7.70 14.27
Insurance expense 9.35 9.73
Rates; fees & taxes 11.21 10.76
Sundry balances written off 0.83 17.72
Office expenses 1512 6.46
Legal & professional charges 10.10 752
Other consumables 0.01 0.13
Stationery & printing expenses 1.08 1.31
Telephone expenses 4.80 3.52
Travelling expenses ’ 26.85 30.58
Vehicle hire charges 34.19 36.69
Interest and fees on taxes 9.05 0.58
' 493.86 450.16

=

27 Earnings per share For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
a. Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders 140.87 24290
b. Weighted average number of equity shares
Number of equity shares of Rs. 10 each at the beginning of the year 90,10,000 90,10,000
Number of equity shares of Rs. 10 each at the end of the year 90,10,000 90,10,000
Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 10 each at the end of the year for
calculation of basic earnings per share §0.10,000 90,10,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in Rs.) - on profit/ (1oss) 1,56 2.70

Nominal value per share (in Rs.) 10.00 10.00
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28 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

1. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial Joss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Company. Credit risk arises principally from trade receivables, loans & advances, cash & cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial
institutions and customers,

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed according to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality
of a customer is assessed based on an credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped
into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company held cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 46.36 Lakh at 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024 Rs. 25.13 Lakh ). The cash and cash equivalents are held with
bank and financial institution with high rating.

Deposits with banks and financial institutions

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial instilutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company's policy.
Tnvestments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterpartics and within credit limils assigned to each counterparty.

Credit risk is managed on Company wide basis. For banks/financial institutions, only high rated banks/institutions are accepted.

Loans

The Company has given loans and advances as security deposits, The credit risk is managed by the Company in accordance with the Company's policy.

(i) Exposure ta credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 months
Expected Credit Losses (ECL)

Loans 1,544.60 2,197.18
Other financial assats 64.18 62.55
1.608.78 2.259.73

Tinancial assets for which loss allowance is measured using life time
Expected Credit Losses (ECL)

Trade and other receivable 1,530.46 1,650.52
v 1,530.46 ]!650.52

(ii) Provision for expected credit losses

(a) Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 month expected credit losses

The Company has assets where the counter- parties have sufficient capacity to meet the obligations and where the risk of default is very low. Accordingly, loss
allowance for impairment has not been recognised.

(b) Financial assets for which Ioss allowance is measured using life time expected credit losses

The Company has customers with strong capacity to meet the obligations and therefore the risk of default is negligible or nil. Further, management beligves that the
unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 30 days are still collectible in full, based on historical payment behavior and extensive analysis of customer
credit risk, Hence, no impairment loss has been recognised during the reporting periods in respect of trade receivables.

(iii) Ageing analysis of trade receivables
The ageing analysis of the trade receivables is as below:

Ageing As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Not due - -
0-30 days past due 579.90 670.67
31-60 days past due 472.05 503.30
61-90 days past due : 478.51 476.55
91-180 days - -
More than 180 days past due - -
Total 1,530.46 1,650.52

(iv) Reconciliation of impairment loss provisions

There is no impairment loss provisions recognised during the ycar.
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management

2, Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeling the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilitics when due, under both
normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s repuation.

The Company has an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of shart, medium and long term funding and liquidity management requirements. The
Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The Company's treasury department is responsible for managing the short term and long term liquidity requirements of the Company. Short term liquidity situation is reviewed daily
by Treasury. The Board of directors has established policies to manage liquidity risk and the Company’s treasury department operates in line with such policies. Any breaches of these
policies are reported to the Board of Directors. Long term liguidity position is reviewed on a regular basis by the Board of Directors and appropriate decisions are taken according to
the situation. i

Typically the Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses for a period of 60 days, including the servicing of financial obligations,

this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.
The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, based on contractual cash flows:

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as on 31 March 2025 Not later than 1 year Eaichiged pacans Later than 5 years Total
not later than 5 years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Term loans from banks 25.94 52.68 78.62
Inter corporate deposits - 41.54 41.54
 Cash credit 447.23 - 447.23
Trade payable 33.30 - 33.30
Due to empolyses 24.72 - 24.72
Total 53119 94.22 625.42
C i g . Later than 1 year and
ontractual maturities of financial liabilities as on 31 March 2024 Not later than 1 year a Later than 5 years Total
. not later than 5 years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Term loans from banks 71.40 78.44 149.84
Inter corporate deposits - 38.60 38.69
Cash credit 552.26 - 552.26
Trads and other payables 820.29 - 82929
Due to empolvees 23.56 - 23.56
Total 1,476.51 117.13 1,593.64
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3. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the
retum.

The Board of directors is responsible for setting up of policies and procedures to manage market risks of the Company. The regular reviews including
diversifications of borrowings to mitigate the market risks are carried out considering the rates of interest and other borrowing terms.

Currency risk

The Company has no financial liabilities in foreign currency as at 31 March 2025 & 31 March 2024 and hence there is exposure to exchange rate fluctuation.For
meeting this exposure, company has entered into heging instrument to cover interest & foreign currency risk.

Interest rate risk i

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk arising mainly fom long term borrowings with floating interest rates. The Company is expused to inferest rale risk
because the cash flows associated with floating rate borrowings will fluctuate with changes in interest rates For mecting this exposure, company has entered into
heging instrument to cover interest & foreign currency risk.

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows:
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Financial Assets

Fixed-rate instruments

Loans 1,544.60 2,197.18
Other financials assets 64.18 62,55
1,608.78 2.259.73

Financial Liabilities
Fixed-rate instruments

Inter-corporate deposils 41.54 38.69
41.54 38.69

Variable-rate instruments
Secured term loan from bank 78.62 149,84
Cash credit 447.23 552.26
525.85 702.10
Total 567.39 740.79

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments
The Company’s fixed rate instruments are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk, since neither the carrying amount nor the
future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

A change of 50 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This
analysis assumes thal all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for the previous year.

Particulars Profit/ (loss), net of tax
50 bp increase 50 bp decrease
31-Mar-23
Secured term loan from bank (0.29) 0.29
Cash credit (1.67) 1.67
(1.96) 1.96
31-Mar-24
Secured term loan from bank (0.50) (.50
Cash credit © o (1.83) 1.83
(2.33) 2.33
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29 Fair Value Measurements

(a) Financial instruments by eategory

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Carrying value Carrying value

FYTPL FYOCI Amortised Cost FVIFL FVOCI Amartised Cost
Financial assets
Non-eurrent
Other financial assets - 64,18 - - 62.55
Current
Loans - 1,544.60 - - 2,197.18
Trade receivables = 1,530.46 - - 1,650.52
Cash and cash equivalents - 46.36 - - 25.13
Other financial assets - 200.00 - - -
TOTAL - 3,385.60 - - 3,935.38
Financial liabilities
Non Current
Borowings - 94.22 - - 117.13
Current
Borrawings - 473.17 - - 623.66
Trade payables - 3330 - = 829,29
Other financial liabilities = 24.92 - - 23,56
TOTAL - {3_2-4=1 - - 1 |593.64
(b) Fair value hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial inst that are dat 1 cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the
financial statements, To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under
the accounting standard, An explanation of cach level follows undemeath the table,
Aszsets and linhilities which are ed at amortised cost and fair value for which fair values are disclosed
Purticulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets
Loans - 1,544.60 - - 2,197.18
Trade receivables - 1,530.46 - - 1,650.52
Cash and cash cquivalents - 46.36 - 25,13
Onher financial assets - 264.18 - 62.55
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial liabilities
Trade payables - 33.30 - - §29.29
Other financial liabilities - 24.72 - - 23.56
Borrowings - 56738 - - 740.78

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a valuation team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value
measurements and reports directly to the Chief Financial Officer. The valuation team regulardy reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as
broker quotes or pricing scrvices, is used to measure fair values, then the valuation team nssesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the
requirements of [nd AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified. Significant valuation issues are reporied to the Company’s awdit commitiee.

Measurement of fair values

The different levels of fair value have been defined below:

Level 1: Level | higrarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices, This includes listed equity instruments and traded bonds that have quoled prce.

Level 2; The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is delermined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as
- possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3. The fair value of financial assets and liahilities included in Level 3 is

determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current market transactions and dealer quotes of similar

instruments, This level includes derivative MTM assets/ liabilities.

Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specifiec valuation technique used to value financial mstruments include:

- the use of quoted market prices or dealer quoles for similar instruments,

- the fair value of interest rale swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimaied future cash flows based on observable yield curves,
- the fair value of principal swaps is detenmined using forward excliange rates at the balance sheet date,

- the fair value of the financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analvsis.
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(b) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

Particulars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Carrying Value Fair value Carrying Value Fair value
Financial assels
Non-Current
Other financial assets 64,18 64.18 62.55 62.55
Current
Loans 1,544.60 1,544.60 2,197.18 2,197.18
Trade receivables 1,530 46 1,530.46 1,650.52 1,650.52
Cash and cash equivalents 4636 4636 25.13 2513
Other financial assets 200.00 200 00 - -
Total .3,335.60 3.385.60 3!935.38 3,935.38
Financial liabilities
Non Current
Borrowings 94,22 94.22 117.13 117.13
Current
Borrowings 473,17 473.17 623,66 623,66
Trade payables 3330 3330 82029 829,29
Other financial hiabilities 24.72 24.72 23.56 23.56
Total 135.41 625.41 1,593.64 1,593.64

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances ather then cash, deposits with banks and interest acerued but not due and other current financial

assets and current financial liabilitics, approximates the fair values, due to their short-term nature.

ial assels

Mon current fi of security deposits whose the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

For financial assets and labilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values,
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30 Finanecial Risk Management

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings in domestic currency, trade payables and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities
is to finance the Company's operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade & other receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that derive directly from
its operations.

The Company is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
- Credit risk

- Liquidity risk

- Market risk

This note explains the sources of risk which the enlity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk.

Risk ____Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Credit Risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade |Ageing analysis Diversification of bank deposits,
receivables, financial assets Credit ratings credit limits and letters of credit

measured at amortised cost

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other liabilitics |Cash flow forecasting Availability of borrowing
Sensitivity analysis facilities
Market risk — interest rale risk Long-term borrowings at Sensitivity analysis Diversification and regular
variable rates review of borrowings

Risk management framework
The Company’s activities makes it susceptible to various risks. The Company has taken adequate measures to address such concerns by developing adequate systems and practices.
The Company’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of markets and seeks to manage the impact of these risks on the Company’s financial performance.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. In order to institutionalize the risk
management in the Company, an elaborate Enterprise wide Risk Management (ERM) framework has been developed, As a part of the implementation of ERM framework, an
Enterprise Risk Management Committee (ERMC) with various Executive Directors as its members has been constituted with an objective to develop and monitor the Company’s
risk management policies and strengthen the risk management framework. Enterprise risk management commitice afier deliberations has identified enterprise wide risk and various
action plans for short term as well as long term have been formulated to mitigate these risks.

The Commiltee is also responsible for reviewing and updating the risk profile, monitoring the effectiveness of the risk management framework and reviewing at least annually the
implementation of the risk management policy and framework. The Committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its activities.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activilies. The Company, through its
training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations,

The Company has policies covering specific areas, such as inferest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, and the use of non-derivative financial instruments. Compliance with policies
and exposure limits is reviewed on a continuous basis.
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31

Capital Management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to;
- safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide retumns for sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders and
- maintain an appropriate capital structure of debt and equity.

The Board of Directors has the primary responsibility to maintain a strong capital base and reduce the cost of capital through prudent management of deployed
funds and leveraging opportunities in domestic and international financial markets so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain
future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital, which the Company defines as result from operating activities
divided by total shareholders” equity. The Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividends to equity shareholders.

In order to achieve the overall objective, the company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to
the interest bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to
immediately eall loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowings in the current
period

The Company monitors capital, using a medium term view of three to five years, on the basis of a number of financial ratios generally used by industry and by

the rating agencies.

The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio which is net debt divided by total equity. Net debt comprises of long term and short term borrowings.
Equity includes equity share capital and reserves that are managed as capilal. The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting periods was as follows:

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Tolal debts 567.29 740.78

Total equity 4,552.57 4,436.42

Net debt to equity ratio 0.12 0.17
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32 Related Party Disclosures

As per Ind As 24, the disclosure of transaclions with related parties are given below:

{n)  List of relnted parties where control exists and also other related parties with whom transaction have taken place and relationships

Name of Realted Party

Relationshi;

Sindhu Trade Link Limited Holding Company
Yashpal Saharan
Alkn Dabas (upto 30-06-2024} Directo VKMP
Seurabh Sindhu
Vrit Pal Sindhu
Han Bhoomi Communications Private Limited
Indus Automalive Private Limited
PM Fincap Limitad
Sainik Mining & Allied Private Limited
Paranutra Associales Private Limited Others
ACB India Limited
Sindhy Farms Private Limited
SatyaPal Sindhu
Param Mitra Manav Nirman Sansthan
V.V, Transport
(b)  Tramsaclions during the year with Related Parties:
Nature of Transactions Holding KMP Others Tatal
Divector Remunzration = 20,00 = 20,00
= (56.00] = (0.00)
- 1.05 - 1.05
Sal
ary = (1.80) - (1.80)
1CD Given - - 1,150.00 1, 150.00
i - {1,003 75) (1,003.75)
Inerest Income - - 175.93 17593
i - (217.20) [217.20)
ICD Given Recived Back - - 1,960.92 1,960.92
= - (1,500.00) (1,500.00)
Security Deposit given - 200.00 200.00
Advertisament & Publicity : : (gg:) (::::]
- - 7.70 7.70
CSR expensa = = (14.27) (14.27)
R 2 - 0.25 0.25
5 chase
Diesel Purchas: {1.78) [1.78)
g - - 202,17 202.17
Coal Purchase = = (53.33) (53.33)
Spare Purchase - ~ Z -
e (1.88) FED]
x = - 4.14 4.14
R
ent Paid = - (3.60) (3.60)
= - - S21.49 921.49
Mapier Grass Purchase = - [GEEE) EEE]
Coal Trenspariation A1.65 - - 41.65
Figures in ( ) are of previous year 31 March 2024
{e) _ Ouistanding balances as at yea end Hulding KMP Oiliers ‘Total
ICD Given z F 1.544.60 1,544.60
- . (2,197.18) (2,197.18)|
—— » - Q.15 0.15
dry Credin
Sy e (©.78) r @002y {0.78)
- 495 - 4.95
Salary Payable pe (5.10) {7.90) {13.00)
- - 0.32 0.32
Rent Pavable - = Z16) 0.16)
- - il
Security Deposit - = 200.00 200.00
& - ] 08
Advance to suppliers 1055 iD_Q
Figures in () are as at 31st March, 2024
(dy Comp ion of Key Managerial Personnel
The remuneralion of director and other member of key managerial personnel during the year was 25 fallaws:
Ipal'lirulﬁls 2024-25 2023-24
|Short Term Benefits 9105 91.80.
|Toal 91.05 91,50
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33  Corporate Social responsibility (CSR)

(a) CSR Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VII thereof by the company during the year

is Rs.4.70 Lakh (Previous year: Rs. 12.26 Lakh).

{b)  Expenditure related to corporate social responsibility is Rs.7.70 Lakh (Previous year: Rs. 14.27 Lakh).

Details of amount spent towards CSR given below:

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Environment Conservation & Sustainability, Education 7.70 14,27
Total 7.70 14.27
34 Contingent liabilities and Commitments
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Claims against the Company, not acknowledged as debts* 1,682.48 1,682.48
1,682.48 1,682.48

Claims against the Company, nof acknowledged as debts includes

i) Demand from the Chief Electrical Inspector (Electricity Departiments) for the payment of Electricity Duty and Interest for the year ended 31
March 2023 and 31 March 2022 of Rs. 80640 Lakh (Previous year: Rs. §06.40 Lakh). The Company has filed a writ petition in the Hon'ble

High Court of Chhatisgarh.

ii.)  Demand from the Water Resources Conservation Department, Bilaspur Chhatisgarh in leau of water tax (including penalty) for the period
01/08/2006 to 31/03/2024 of Rs. 876.08 Lakh (Previous year: Rs. 876.08). The Company has filed an application contesting the
charges/penalty & the same is the pending for disposal before Water Resources Conservation Department, Bilaspur Chhatisgarh.
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Additional Regulatory Information

All the title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly
executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment during the year.
The Company has not revalued its intangible assets during the year.

No loans or advances in the nature of loans were granted to promolers, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act,
2013), either severally or jointly with any other person, that are repayable on demand or without specifying any term of repayment.

No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami proparty under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

Company has borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. In this respect please note that:
Quaterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of
account.

Company is not declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, Company has not entered into any transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the
Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1936,

As on Balance Sheet ended 31st March 2023, neither any creation of charge nor any satisfaction thereof, is pending to be registered with ROC
beyond the statutory period.

Clause (87) of Section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 is not applicable on the company,
though complied.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to
any other persan or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons/entities identified in any manner whalsosver by or on behalf
of the Company (‘ultimate beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding party”) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding party (ultimate beneficiaries); or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency during the year.

The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessment under Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Company docs not have any intangible assets under development,
The Company has not delayed/ defaulted in the repaymnet of principal and interest amount.

The Company has not entered into amalgamation or any scheme of amalgamation referred under Section 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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SUDHA BIO POWER PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial stalements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(il amaunis are in rupees in lakhis), unless otherwise staled)

37 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 "Income taxes"
(i) Income tax recognised in statement of profit and loss
. For the year ended | For the year ended
Particula
articulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current tax 5340 8305
Deferred tax charge/(credit) (3.87) (24.34)
Income tax for earlier years = =
Total income tax expense 49.53 58.71
(i) 1 tax recognised in other comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2025 For the year ended 31 March 2024
Particulars Tax expense/ Tax expense/
Befuore tax (benefit) Net of tax Before tax (benefit) Net of tax
- Met actuarial gains/(losses) on r - = s
defined hensfit plans (2.08) (0.52) (1.56) (7.93) (2.00) (5.93)
(&08] (ﬂ_,SZ] (1,56) (7.93) (2.00}) f5‘93!
(iii) Reconcilintion of tux expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s dumestic fax rate :
{a) Current tax
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(“) (%)
Profit/(loss) before tax 190.40 301.61
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 25.168% (2023-24 - 25.168%) 25.17% 4792 25.17% 759
Tax effect of:
Mon-deductible expenses 2.88% 5.48 237% 7.14
Al the effective income tax rate 28.05% 53.40 27.54% 83.05
(b)  Delerred tax chnrgc.f! credif)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

(i} Increase/(decrease) in deferred tax liability at tax rate of 25.168% (2023-24 - 25,168%)

Due to property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress 0.02 (21.02)

Investment in shares at fair value i =
(ii) Increase/{decrease) in deferred tax asset at tax rate of 25.168% (2023-24 25.168%)

Provision for gratuity 442 5.32
Deferred tax charge/(credit) (4.40) tzﬁ.}-l!

e,
g NGC\\‘:




SUDHA BIO POWER PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 Mar 2025
(Ail amounts are in rupees in lakh(s), unless otherwise stated,

38 Auditor's Remuneration As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Audit Fees 3.48 3.31
GST 0.63 0.60
4.11 3.91

39 In the opinion of the management, the value on realisation of current assels, loans & advances in the ordinary course of business
would not be less than the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet and provisions for all known liabilities has been
made. Further, debit and credit balances are subject to confirmations.

40 Previous year figurcs have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary in line with Ind AS,

41 The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2025 were approved for issue by board of directars on 27th
May 2025.

As per our report of even date attached

For NGC & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Sudha Bio Power Private Limited

Firm Registration No.: 03340 1N/N3500351
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